
PLANNING, REGULATORY AND 
LICENSING

5.00 PM WEDNESDAY, 19TH JULY, 2017
COUNCIL CHAMBER

Please note that this meeting will be recorded for subsequent broadcast via the Authority’s 
Internet Site. 

 
The images and sound recording may also be used for training purposes within the Authority.

The Public Seating areas will be in view of the Camera and, by entering the Chamber and using 
the Public Seating Area, Members 

of the Public are consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and 
sound recordings as outlined above.  

This Agenda has been prepared by the 
Democratic Services Department. Any member of the public requiring information should 

contact the department on (01685 725284) or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk.

Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can be found 
on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers.

AGENDA

1. Apologies for absence 

2. Declarations of Interest 
Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


Note:

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and

(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 
as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave

OPEN SESSION

Planning Applications  -  Recommendations under the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and the Planning and Compensation Act 
1991

3. P/16/0205  -  Plot of land adjacent to 6 Brynseion 
Street, Troedyrhiw, Merthyr Tydfil 
To consider report of the Deputy Chief Executive. 1 - 12

4. P/17/0149  -  Land adjoining Bramdale, Ash Road, 
Troedyrhiw, Merthyr Tydfil 
To consider report of Deputy Chief Executive.  13 - 22

Information Reports

5. P/16/0192  -  Appeal Decision 
To receive report of the Deputy Chief Executive 23 - 24

6. P/16/0264  -  Appeal Decision 
To receive report of the Deputy Chief Executive 25 - 26

7. P/16/0283  -  Appeal Decision 
To receive report of the Deputy Chief Executive 27 - 28

8. Delegated Report 
To receive report of the Deputy Chief Executive 29 - 32

9. Any Other Business Deemed Urgent by the Chair 



COMPOSITION: Councillor  C Tovey (Chair) 

Councillors:  J Amos, H Barrett, D Chaplin, M Colbran, 
E Galsworthy, K Gibbs, C T Jones, G Lewis, J Thomas 
and S Thomas

together with appropriate officers

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



DATE WRITTEN 7th July 2017 

REPORT AUTHOR Judith Jones 

CASE OFFICER Marlene Ferreira 

COMMITTEE Planning and Regulatory 

COMMITTEE DATE 19th July 2017 
 
 

Application No. Date Determining Authority 
P/16/0205 7th February 2017 MTCBC 
   
Proposed Development Location Name & Address of 

Applicant/Agent 
   
Erection of 2 No. 3 bedroom 
dwellings with associated site 
parking 

Plot Of Land Adjacent To  
6 Brynseion Street 
Troedyrhiw 
Merthyr Tydfil 
 
 

Mr J C Da Costa Marinho  
c/o Mr E Scruton 
78 Sandringham Road 
Barking 
Essex 
IG11 9AJ    

 

 
 
Councillors Harvey Jones and Gareth Lewis have requested that this application be 
reported to Committee to consider the objections raised by local residents. 
 
APPLICATION SITE 
 
The application site relates to a triangular shaped parcel of land located adjacent, 
and to the north of, 6 Brynseion Street. It is bound to the south by a terrace of three 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



properties, to the east by Brynseion Street and to the north and west by an adopted 
rear lane. The land historically housed residential properties but now mainly consists 
of an open grassed embankment. It slopes down steeply from the north east 
(Brynseion Street) to the south west (rear adopted lane). A parking area, for 
approximately 6/7 cars, forms part of the western boundary of the site. 
 
The application site lies within the settlement boundary – Other Growth Area, as 
designated within the Merthyr Tydfil Local Development Plan (LDP) 2006-2021. 

 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
This application seeks full planning permission to construct a pair of semi-detached 
dwellings. Due to the topography of the land they would be two storey where they 
front Brynseion Street and three storey to the rear. Each dwelling would be 5.8 
metres wide, 7.8 metres deep and have a maximum height of 10 metres. The 
external walls would be rendered and the roofs would be covered with artificial slate. 
The proposed dwellings would be detached from the existing row of terraced 
properties (6-8 Brynseion Street) located to the east of the site. This application is a 
re-submission of a recently refused planning application (P/16/0098) for the erection 
of three dwellings with on-site parking. 
 
Each dwelling would, at basement level, have a kitchen/diner and bathroom. At 
ground floor they would have a study, living room and WC. At first floor, the 
accommodation would consist of three bedrooms and a bathroom. 
 
The dwellings would be stepped to follow the topography of the street. The rear 
gardens would be enclosed by a brick wall with timber fencing on top and positioned 
between brick piers. Each dwelling would be served by two on-site parking spaces 
which would be accessed off the rear lane. The rear lane would be widened from 2.7 
metres to a minimum of 3.6 metres. A set of steps and small grassed area would 
also provide access, between the southern dwelling and 6 Brynseion Street, to the 
rear lane. A communal grassed area is also proposed on an area of land adjacent to 
the junction of the rear lane and Brynseion Street. 
 
PLANNING HISTORY 
 
P/16/0098 – Erection of three dwellings with on-site parking and amenity space – 
Refused: 27th May 2016  
 
Reasons:  
 

1. The proposed dwellings, by virtue of their inappropriate scale, design and 
siting, would represent a visually intrusive and incongruous form of 
development detrimental to the character and appearance of the street scene. 
The proposed development therefore fails to accord with Policy BW7 of the 
Merthyr Tydfil Local Development Plan 2006-2021. 

 
2. The proposed dwellings would not be served by adequate on-site car parking 

which would result in an increase to on-street parking to the detriment of 

Page 2



highway safety. The proposal would therefore fail to accord with Policies 
BW12 and TB11 of the Merthyr Tydfil Local Development Plan 2006-2021. 

 
CONSULTATION 
 
Engineering and Traffic Group Leader  No objection subject to 

conditions.  
 
Town Planning Division’s Policy      No objection. 
and Implementation Group Leader    
 
Town Planning Division’s Design, 
Heritage and Conservation Officer  No objection, subject to 

conditions.  
         
Environmental Health Manager No objection, subject to 

conditions. 
 
Western Power       No response. 
 
Welsh Water        No objection.  
 
Wales and West Utilities       No objection.  

 
PUBLICITY 
 
In accordance with the Town and Country Planning (Development Management 
Procedure) Order (Wales) 2012, letters were sent to adjoining occupiers and site 
notices were displayed within the vicinity of the site. A petition with twenty two 
signatures and twenty two letters of representation have been received as a result of 
this publicity exercise. It should be noted that, as a result of amended plans being 
submitted, multiple objections have been received from the some of the objectors. 
The objections raised are summarised below: 
 

 The development would limit access along the rear lane and prevent 
ambulances, other emergency vehicles and refuse lorries from reaching 
properties. 

 The use of the narrow lane, as a result of the proposed dwellings, could 
endanger children/adults since garden fences and telegraph poles have been 
knocked down along the lane in the past. 

 Parking is currently a problem in the area. The removal of the current parking 
spaces (6/7) on the site, combined with the increase car usage due to the 
proposal, would result in further problems in terms of on-street parking in an 
already congested area. Access to existing properties/garages would become 
extremely difficult. 

 The previous dwellings on-site were demolished due to issues concerning 
subsidence. Any further construction on-site may cause further disruption to 
the surrounding land and properties. 

 The prevention of any damage to the surrounding properties should be 
guaranteed by the developers of the site. 

Page 3



 The site is not large enough to accommodate three dwellings. 

 The development would impact on the value of surrounding properties. 

 The proposed dwellings would not match the style of existing properties and 
would have a detrimental impact on the street scene. 

 The development would result in the loss of daylight and adversely impact on 
the amenities of neighbouring properties. 

 This land has been used as public green space and people were not notified 
that this land was due to be sold. Public consultation events were not held to 
make residents aware that the land was proposed to be sold.  

 
POLICY CONTEXT 

 
National Planning Policy  
 
- Planning Policy Wales (Edition 9, November 2016)  
 
The most relevant sections to the proposed development are as follows: 
 
2.1.2   Planning applications must be determined in accordance with the adopted 

plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  

4.11.8  Good design is essential to ensure that areas, particularly those where 
higher density development takes place, offer high environmental quality, 
including open and green spaces. Landscape considerations are an 
integral part of the design process and can make a positive contribution to 
environmental protection and improvement, for example to biodiversity, 
climate protection, air quality and the protection of water resources.  

4.11.9  The visual appearance of proposed development, its scale and its 
relationship to its surroundings and context are material planning 
considerations. Local planning authorities should reject poor building and 
contextual designs. However, they should not attempt to impose a 
particular architectural taste or style arbitrarily and should avoid inhibiting 
opportunities for innovative design solutions.  

8.7.1   When determining a planning application for development that has 
transport implications, local planning authorities should take into account: 

 • the impacts of the proposed development on travel demand;  
 • the level and nature of public transport provision;  
 • accessibility by a range of different transport modes;  

• the opportunities to promote active travel journeys, and secure new and 
improved active travel routes and related facilities, in accordance with the 
provisions of the Active Travel (Wales) Act 2013.  

 
9.3.1  New housing developments should be well integrated with and connected 

to the existing pattern of settlements. 

9.3.3   Insensitive infilling, or the cumulative effects of development or 
redevelopment, including conversion and adaptation, should not be allowed 
to damage an area’s character or amenity. This includes any such impact 

Page 4



on neighbouring dwellings, such as serious loss of privacy or 
overshadowing.  

9.3.4   In determining applications for new housing, local planning authorities 
should ensure that the proposed development does not damage an area’s 
character and amenity. Increases in density help to conserve land 
resources, and good design can overcome adverse effects, but where high 
densities are proposed the amenity of the scheme and surrounding 
property should be carefully considered. 

 
- Technical Advice Notes (TAN’S) 
 
TAN 12 – Design (2016) 
 
TAN 12 – Design, advises that the Welsh Government is strongly committed to 
achieving the delivery of good design in the built and natural environment, which is fit 
for purpose and delivers environmental sustainability, economic development, and 
social inclusion at every scale throughout Wales. 
 
Paragraph 2.6 of TAN12 states that ‘...Design which is inappropriate in its context, or 
which fails to grasp opportunities to enhance the character, quality or function of an 
area, should not be accepted, as these have detrimental effects on existing 
communities...’ 
 
Paragraph 4.3 of TAN12 points out ‘...Understanding the site and its immediate and 
wider context is the basis for a meaningful and sustainable design response, and is 
the responsibility of all those involved in the design process... ’ 
 
Local Planning Policy 
 
- The Adopted Merthyr Tydfil Local Development Plan (LDP) 2006-2021: 
 

Policy BW3 - Development strategy – other growth areas. 
Policy BW4 - Settlement boundaries / locational constraints. 
Policy BW7 - Sustainable design and place making. 
Policy BW8 - Development and the water environment. 
Policy BW12 - Development proposals and transport. 
Policy BW17 - Securing community infrastructure benefits. 
Policy AS4 - Historic landscape. 
Policy AS22 - Affordable housing contributions. 
Policy TB11 - Access, parking and accessibility of local facilities. 
 

- Supplementary Planning Guidance  
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance Note 1: Affordable Housing (March 2012) 
Supplementary Planning Guidance Note 2: Planning Obligations (March 2012) 
Supplementary Planning Guidance Note 4: Sustainable Design (July 2013) 
 
- Other Guidance  
 

Page 5



CSS Wales – Wales Parking Standards 2008  

 
PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
 
The application site lies within the settlement boundary as identified by the LDP. As 
such, Policy BW4 supports residential development in this location provided that it is 
compatible with other relevant local plan policies and material planning 
considerations. Thus, the main considerations in the assessment of this application 
relate to whether the proposal would be acceptable with regards to its impact upon 
the character and appearance of the area, residential amenity, parking and highway 
safety.  
 
This application has been submitted in an attempt to overcome the reasons for 
refusal (noted above) attached to decision P/16/0098. It originally proposed the 
erection of a terrace of three dwellings. However, following concerns raised by both 
objectors and officers concerning the accuracy of the submitted plans and the impact 
of the proposal on the character and appearance of the area, residential amenity and 
highway safety, amended plans were submitted. It should also be noted that the 
amended plans were submitted by a different architect and included a topographical 
survey of the site and surrounding land. As such, as described above, the applicant 
is now seeking permission for two dwellings with each having two off-street car 
parking spaces. 
 
Character and Appearance 

 
The application site is surrounded by properties which vary in terms of their design, 
age and size. However, it is the row of three terraced dwellings along Brynseion 
Street which have the closest relationship with the application site. This row consists 
of traditional two-storey terraced properties (three-storey to the rear) which form a 
consistent building line and are sited hard up to the pavement along Brynseion 
Street. They have a pebble dashed finish with white UPVc windows and doors. 
These properties in terms of their form are largely unaltered, with only one dwelling 
having been extended by means of a rear, single storey, flat roof addition. The 
proposed pair of semi-detached dwellings have been designed to reflect the 
character and appearance of this adjacent terrace with a similar size, roof pitch, 
simple fenestration pattern and rendered elevations.  
 
The previous application (P/16/0098), which was refused, proposed three dwellings 
set back from the highway. They were considered inappropriate in this location 
because of their siting, design and scale. It is considered that this proposal is a vast 
improvement which would sit comfortably in the street scene without significantly 
harming the character or appearance of the area. An area of open/communal space 
has also been retained to soften the impact of the proposal and ensure the land 
would not be overdeveloped. The proposed rear and side boundary treatments 
would provide appropriate enclosures. As such, the proposed development would 
result in a sympathetic proposal compatible with the character and appearance of 
the local area and in compliance with Policy BW7 of the LDP. 
 
 
 

Page 6



Parking and Highway Safety  
 
As noted above, the previous application (P/16/0098) was also refused because of 
insufficient off-street car parking and the subsequent impact on highway safety due 
to the increase demand for on-street parking. This refused application proposed one 
off-street car parking space per dwelling (i.e. 3 spaces). The current proposal 
includes two off-street car parking spaces per dwelling (i.e. 4 spaces). The layout 
plan also illustrates that part of the land would be used to widen the adopted lane 
from 2.7 metres to a minimum of 3.6 metres. It is considered that the amount of off-
street car parking provided is sufficient for dwellings of this size and the proposed 
changes to the rear lane would ensure adequate turning and manoeuvring could 
take place. Thus, the Engineering and Traffic Group Leader has not raised an 
objection to the proposed development and considers it acceptable in terms of 
highway safety. As such the proposal accords with LDP Policies BW12 and TB11. 
 
The concerns raised by local residents with regard to the loss of the existing parking 
spaces are fully appreciated. However, the applicant now owns the land and can 
prevent access to his land at any time (i.e. prevent parking in the existing spaces). 
Thus, the loss of these spaces and the subsequent impact on surrounding on-street 
parking and highway safety cannot be a reason for refusing this application. 
Furthermore, residents have stated that the proposal would restrict the use of the 
lane for emergency and other vehicles.  However, the proposed widening of the lane 
would improve manoeuvring/access. This is recognised by the Engineering and 
Traffic Group Leader who has raised no objection in this respect. 
  
Residential Amenity 
 
Given the siting of the dwellings and their relationship with surrounding properties, 
the main impact in terms of overlooking would be from the rear ground floor lounge 
windows and rear first floor bedroom windows. These windows would be located at 
least 15 metres away from the rear boundaries of the properties in Ash Villas and in 
excess of 21 metres away from any habitable windows in these properties. As such, 
there would be no significant loss of amenity to these properties by virtue of 
overlooking. Likewise, given the acute angle between these windows and the rear 
gardens of 6 Brynseion Street and 4 Zion Close there would be no loss of residential 
amenity to these properties. 
 
The distance away from neighbouring dwellings combined with their siting and the 
fact that the proposal would be constructed adjacent to the gable end of 6 Brynseion 
Street ensures that there would not be any significant overbearing impact or loss of 
light as a result of the proposed development. The relationship of the proposed 
dwellings with neighbouring residents would therefore not result in a harmful or 
unneighbourly form of development. As such it complies with Policy BW7 of the LDP.   
 
Response to Representations 
 
Some of the concerns raised by the objectors have been considered above. With 
regards to other issues highlighted the following should be noted:  
 

Page 7



 The blocking of an access to a property/garage or illegal parking is a police 
matter and cannot be controlled by the Local Planning Authority. 

 A land stability/structural report could be requested by means of a condition 
attached to any planning permission. However, this would also be fully 
assessed under the Building Regulations. 

 Any damage to neighbouring properties as a result of any future development 
would be a civil matter between the parties involved. 

 The loss of a property value as a result of a development is not a material 
planning consideration. 

 
Planning Obligations 
 
In this instance no planning obligations for the provision of affordable housing or any 
other contributions have been sought, as this would likely render the development 
financially unviable. In order to come to this conclusion, an assessment has been 
carried out using the default values in the Three Dragons Toolkit. 
 
Conclusion  
 
I have considered the duty to improve the economic, social, environmental and 
cultural well-being of Wales, in accordance with the sustainable development 
principle, under section 3 of the Well-Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 
(“the WBFG Act”). In reaching this decision, I have taken into account the ways of 
working set out at section 5 of the WBFG Act and I consider that this decision is in 
accordance with the sustainable development principle through its contribution 
towards one or more of the Welsh Ministers well-being objectives set out as required 
by section 8 of the WBFG Act.    
 
The site is located within settlement boundaries where new residential development 
is encouraged. The proposed development could be developed without any 
significant harmful impact on the character and appearance of the area, residential 
amenity or highway safety. As such, the proposal accords with the relevant policies 
of the LDP. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: BE APPROVED subject to the FOLLOWING CONDITIONS:  
 
 1. The development shall begin not later than five years from the date of this 

decision. 
  
 Reason - To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 

1990. 
 
 2. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved plans and documents:  
  
 - Project no: 7943, drawing no. 02, rev B - received 13th March 2017; 
 - Project no: 7943, drawing no. 03, rev B - received 13th March 2017; 
  
 Reason -To ensure compliance with the approved plans and clearly define 

the scope of the permission. 

Page 8



 
 3. Prior to the construction of the dwellings hereby approved details/samples 

of the materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the 
dwellings and boundary enclosures shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the local planning authority. Development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details. 

  
 Reason - To ensure that the external appearance of the proposed 

development will be in keeping with the character of the area and adjoining 
buildings in the interests of visual amenity and to accord with Policy BW7 of 
the Merthyr Tydfil Local Development Plan. 

 
 4. No development shall take place until full engineering details and sections, 

including structural calculations and materials, of any retaining wall which 
exceeds 1 metre in height have been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority.  The walls shall be completed in accordance 
with the approved details before the development hereby approved is brought 
into beneficial use.  

  
 Reason - In the interest of safety and visual amenity in accordance with 

Policies BW6 and BW7 of the Merthyr Tydfil Local Development Plan. 
 
 5. Notwithstanding the submitted plans, no development shall commence until 

details of a scheme for the disposal of foul and surface water, to incorporate 
SUDS principles, has been submitted to and agreed in writing by the local 
planning authority. The scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the 
approved details prior to the occupation of the dwellings and retained in 
perpetuity. 

  
 Reason - To ensure adequate disposal of foul and surface water drainage in 

accordance with Policy BW8 of the Merthyr Tydfil Local Development Plan. 
 
 6. Construction works shall not take place outside the hours of 0800 to 1800 

Mondays to Fridays and 0900 to 1400 on Saturdays and at no time on 
Sundays or Public Holidays. 

  
 Reason - To ensure that the noise emitted/activities are not a source of 

nuisance to occupants of nearby properties in accordance with Policy BW7 of 
the Merthyr Tydfil Local Development Plan. 

 
 7. Notwithstanding the provisions of Schedule 2, Part 1, Class A, B, C, D and E 

and Part 2, Class A of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) Order 1995 (as amended for Wales) (or any order revoking and 
re-enacting that order with or without modification), no extensions, 
outbuildings, other alterations, walls, gates, fences or other means of 
enclosure shall be erected or carried out other than what is expressly 
authorised by this permission.  

  
 Reason - In the interest visual and residential amenity in accordance with 

Policy BW7 of the Merthyr Tydfil Local Development Plan. 

Page 9



 
 8. No development or site clearance shall take place until there has been 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority a 
scheme of landscaping. The scheme shall include indications of all existing 
trees (including spread and species) and hedgerows on the land, identify 
those to be retained and set out measures for their protection throughout the 
course of development. 

  
 Reason - To ensure that the new development will be visually attractive in the 

interests of amenity and to accord with Policy BW7 of the Merthyr Tydfil Local 
Development Plan. 

 
 9. All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of 

landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons 
following the occupation of the buildings or the completion of the 
development, whichever is the sooner; and any trees or plants which within a 
period of 5 years from the completion of the development die, are removed or 
become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting 
season with others of similar size and species. 

  
 Reason - To ensure that the new development will be visually attractive in the 

interests of amenity and to accord with Policy BW7 of the Merthyr Tydfil Local 
Development Plan. 

 
10. No development shall take place until a structural design certificate, 

completed and signed by a Chartered Engineer, and a scheme to deal with 
existing ground conditions has been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority.  The Certificate shall certify that appropriate site 
investigations have been carried out at the site.  The scheme shall include an 
investigation and assessment to identify those precautions or measures 
deemed to be required in the design and construction of the proposed 
development in order to minimise any damage which might arise as a result of 
ground conditions. 

  
 Reason - To ascertain the stability of the site and to determine the structural 

suitability of the development thereon in view of prevailing ground conditions. 
 
11. Prior to the occupation of the dwellings, hereby approved, the car parking 

spaces and widening/improvements of the rear lane shall be completed (and 
available for use) in accordance with the approved plan 7943/02/B. The car 
parking spaces and road widening/improvements shall be retained for their 
intended purpose thereafter.   

  
 Reason - To ensure the access/parking/turning requirements of the 

development are adequately met at all times in the interest of highway and 
pedestrian safety and to ensure compliance with policies BW12 and TB11 of 
the Merthyr Tydfil Local Development Plan 2006-2021. 

 

Page 10



12. The area highlighted as 'Communal Grassed Area' on approved drawing No. 
7943/02/B shall only be used as open-space and shall not be incorporated 
within the curtilage of the residential plots or used for residential purposes. 

  
 Reason - To ensure that the new development will be visually attractive in the 

interests of amenity and to accord with Policy BW7 of the Merthyr Tydfil Local 
Development Plan. 

 
 
 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 
            

 

DATE WRITTEN 7th July 2017 

REPORT AUTHOR Judith Jones 

CASE OFFICER David Cross 

COMMITTEE Planning and Regulatory 

COMMITTEE DATE 19th July 2017 
 
 

Application No. Date Determining Authority 
P/17/0149 17th May 2017 MTCBC 
   
Proposed Development Location Name & Address of 

Applicant/Agent 
   
Erection of detached building to 
provide tourist accommodation 
with associated parking and 
bicycle storage 

Land Adjoining Bramdale 
Ash Road 
Troedyrhiw 
Merthyr Tydfil 
 
 

Mrs J Jones 
Llyswen 
Cilsanws Lane 
Cefn Coed 
Merthyr Tydfil  

 
 
Councillor Gareth Lewis has requested that this application be reported to Committee to 
fully consider the objections raised by the local residents. 
 
APPLICATION SITE 
 
This application relates to an area of vacant land measuring approximately 13m deep by 
7m wide. The site largely comprises an area of hardstanding (with stone chippings) and 
gabion baskets supporting the western boundary of the site. To the north is an adjoining 

Page 13

Agenda Item 4



three storey residential property and to the east is Ash Road which provides access to the 
site. The Taff Trail also runs parallel with Ash Road and is separated from the road by 
landscaping.  To the west and south of the site are what appear to be garden areas that 
form part of the curtilage of Ash Villa, which is located further south along Ash Road. It is 
noted that a hedgerow runs along the southern and western boundaries of the site with a 
number of trees located outside of the site to the west. 
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
Full planning permission is sought for the erection of a small building, with off-street parking 
and bicycle storage facilities, to provide tourist accommodation. The proposed building 
would be situated in the western part of the site and in order to accommodate the 
development, would involve the removal of the existing gabion baskets. The building would 
measure 5.14m wide by 4.64m deep and 6.7m high with a pitched roof. An open plan sitting 
room and kitchen would be provided at ground floor level with a single bedroom and shower 
room at the first floor level. The external finishes of the building would comprise blue 
Pennant natural stonework to the front elevation with painted render to the side and rear 
elevations. Fibre cement slate would be utilised on the roof. 
 
To the rear of the building a small decked area would be provided on an upper ground level 
measuring approximately 5.14m wide by 1.5m deep. This would be accessed from the first 
floor level. To the front of the property a driveway would be created which would provide 
one off-street parking space. Adjacent to the existing hedgerow to the south of the site, two 
secure bicycle storage units would be provided. These units would be pre-fabricated steel 
structures measuring 2.3m wide by 1m deep and 1.3m high. 
 
PLANNING HISTORY 
 
P/04/0200 - One pair of semi-detached houses. 
 
   Permission GRANTED on 12.07.2004 
 
CONSULTATION 
 
Engineering & Traffic 
Group Leader   - No objection subject to conditions relating to  

drainage, structural design and retaining works. 
 
Planning Division’s 
Policy & Implementation 
Group Leader   - No objection. 
 
Planning Division’s Landscape  
Architect    - No objection. It is noted that Japanese Knotweed  

is known to be present in the general area and 
care should be taken to ensure the invasive 
species is not disturbed. 

 
Environmental Health manager - No response. 
 

Page 14



Welsh Water    - No objection subject to a condition relating to  
surface water drainage. 

 
Western Power Distribution - No response. 
 
Wales & west Utilities  - No objection. 
 
PUBLICITY 
 
In accordance with the Town & Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) 
(Wales) Order 2012, letters were sent to the neighbouring properties and a site noticed was 
displayed within the vicinity of the site. 
 
As a result of this publicity exercise 7 letters of objections were received from five of the 
neighbouring properties, which raised the following concerns: 
 

1. The existing road serving the site is narrow and any additional traffic would cause 
disturbance and highway safety concerns for existing residents and pedestrians. 

2. There have been issues with blocked sewer pipes and a collapsed conduit pipe in 
the past and any increase in sewerage could adversely impact the existing system. 

3. The proposed building would be close to the front door of the adjoining property 
(Bramdale) and would increase the difficulty for large furniture items to be 
manoeuvred in and out of the property. 

4. The road serving the site is constantly used for access to nearby stables and the 
road may need to be dug up for utility connections, which will cause disruption to the 
area. 

5. There are concerns that the site does not have any turning facilities and would only 
provide 1 parking space. 

6. There are concerns that the proposed building and patio would result in overlooking 
into adjoining land. 

7. The proposed building would lead to the overshadowing of adjoining land, would 
prevent light coming through the front door of Woodlands and would block views of 
the mountainside. 

8. It has been highlighted that the development would involve the removal of land which 
is not in the applicant’s ownership. 

9. The development would devalue existing properties. 
10. The development has the potential to introduce strangers to the area, which raises 

security concerns. 
 
POLICY CONTEXT 
 
The following policies are relevant to the determination of this application: 
 
National planning policy 
 
Planning Policy Wales (PPW), Edition 9, November 2016: 
 
Para’s 4.11.9 – 4.11.12 set out the principles of good design in new development 
proposals, which should take into account its relationship to its surrounding context. Regard 

Page 15



should be given to the appropriate scale, appearance, landscaping and quality of building 
design and should also be accessible for all. 
 
Para’s 5.5.1 – 5.5.3 note that the impact a development proposal may have on wildlife or 
the landscape is an important consideration in determining applications. Where ever 
possible adverse effects on the environment should be avoided or acceptably minimised. 
 
Para 8.7.1 sets out the criterion that should be considered where transport implications may 
occur, such as impacts on local travel demand, public transport provision, accessibility and 
highway safety. 
 
Para 11.1.13 states that local authorities should seek to protect and enhance the rights of 
way network as a recreational and environmental resource, as well as promote the use of 
national cycle networks. 
 
Technical Advice Notes (TAN): 
 

 TAN 5 Nature Conservation and Planning, September 2009 

 TAN 12 Design, March 2016 

 TAN 18 Transport, March 2007 
 
Local planning policy 
 
Merthyr Tydfil Local Development Plan (LDP) 2006-2021: 
 

 Policy BW1 - Development strategy – Primary Growth Area 

 Policy BW4 - Settlement boundaries / locational constraints 

 Policy BW5 - Natural heritage 

 Policy BW7 - Sustainable design and place making 

 Policy BW8 - Development and the water environment 

 Policy BW12 - Development proposals and transport 

 Policy BW16 - Protecting / enhancing the network of leisure facilities 

 Policy TB11 - Access, parking and accessibility of local facilities 
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG): 
 

 SPG 2 Planning Obligations, March 2012 

 SPG 4 Sustainable Design, July 2013 

 SPG 5 Nature and Development, May 2015 
 
PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
 
Land use 
 
The application site is located within the settlement boundary and Primary Growth Area as 
defined by the LDP, where the majority of new development is encouraged. Whilst 
permission is sought for a new building to provide tourist accommodation, it is considered 
that it would not be dissimilar to a small 1 bedroom dwelling. Having regard to the 

Page 16



predominantly residential nature of the nearby properties, it is considered that the proposal 
would not be out of character with the area. 
 
The applicant has indicated that the building is intended to provide tourist accommodation 
particularly for those visiting the nearby mountain bike centre (Bike Park Wales), where 
there are direct links along Ash Road. Additionally, the site has good access to a national 
cycle route (Taff Trail) adjacent to the site. Therefore, it is considered that the principle of 
the development is acceptable and complies with policies BW1 and BW4 of the LDP. The 
development would also promote the use of the national cycle network as encouraged by 
PPW.  
 
Design 
 
The existing properties within the immediate vicinity of the site vary in their style with town 
houses and a bungalow situated to the north, with a traditional stone faced dwelling and 
public house to the south. There are also two garages near the site, one of which is 
constructed from metal sheets and the other from natural stone. The application site is 
situated in an area that has a semi-rural character, which is emphasised by the surrounding 
natural landscape and the narrow access lane that leads into the open countryside. 
 
The proposed building has been designed to reflect the more traditional character of the 
area, rather than introduce another modern property, which would otherwise deteriorate 
further the semi-rural appearance of the area. The scale of the building is largely 
constrained by the extent of the site. Nevertheless, the proposal would not appear at odds 
with the traditional buildings in the vicinity. Indeed the proportions, fenestration and use of 
natural stone on the front elevation, would complement the character and appearance of 
the area. 
 
Ideally the two bicycle storage units would be situated in a more discreet location i.e. in a 
rear garden area or to the side of the building. However, due to the constraints of the site, 
the only suitable location would be the front of the building. The applicant has indicated that 
these units are an essential feature of the development as they would cater for tourists 
taking advantage of the nearby cycling facilities. Taking into account the need for the units, 
their small scale and the fact they would be partly screened by the existing hedgerow, it is 
considered that they would not have an adverse impact on the character of the area. Any 
harm that they may have on the appearance of the area is outweighed by the benefits they 
would have to the proposed tourism accommodation. It is considered that the overall 
proposal would not have an adverse impact on the character or appearance of the area. 
Therefore, the proposal complies with policy BW7 of the LDP. 
 
Amenities 
 
The properties that would have the greatest potential to be affected by the development 
would be Bramdale to the north and the garden area to the south serving Ash Villa. It is 
noted that specific concerns have been raised by the occupants of Woodlands relating to 
loss of light. However, this property is situated a sufficient distance away from the site and 
would not be affected by the development. 
 
The proposed building would largely be situated to the side of Bramdale and would project 
approximately 1.9m forward of its front elevation. To the side of Bramdale is the main 

Page 17



entrance and a small window serving a toilet. It is acknowledged that the position of the 
development would impact on the light received to the side of Bramdale. However, the 
principle windows/patio doors of the property, which serve habitable rooms, are located on 
the front and rear elevations. In this respect it is considered that the position and scale of 
the development would have a minimal impact on the living conditions of the adjoining 
property and would not give rise to adverse overshadowing or overbearing impacts. 
 
The garden area to the south of the site appears to be somewhat detached from Ash Villa 
as it is separated from the property by two detached garages. The land in question also 
appears to be used for the siting of a caravan. Notwithstanding this, taking into account the 
sun path, with the development situated on the northern side of the garden, it is considered 
that there would not be any overshadowing impacts. Additionally, there would not be any 
windows on the side elevation of the proposed building that may otherwise give rise to 
overlooking concerns. It is accepted that the proposal would bring development closer the 
boundary of the garden, which would have some impact on the garden area. However, 
taking into account the siting of the proposal and its small scale, it is considered that the 
development would not give rise to overbearing concerns that adversely impact on the 
amenity space. It is considered that the proposed development would not give rise to an 
unacceptable impact on the amenities of the neighbouring occupiers or the living conditions 
they can reasonably expect. Therefore, the proposal complies with policy BW7 of the LDP. 
 
Highways 
 
A large part of the application site has been covered with stone chippings to create a 
hardstanding area, which is already being used for parking by the adjoining property 
(Bramdale). It has been demonstrated on the submitted plans that adequate room can be 
accommodated within the site for the provision of one off-street parking space in front of the 
proposed building. The parking arrangement would likely necessitate vehicles either having 
to reverse in to or out of the site, in a similar manner to the neighbouring properties. 
 
It is acknowledged that the access lane serving the site is narrow and generally supports 
single lane traffic with limited opportunity for vehicles to pass. However, it is considered that 
the proposed development would not result in a significant rise in the level of traffic 
generated in the area. It is noted that the lane has a shared surface with no pedestrian 
segregation. The introduction of one additional vehicle using the access as a result of the 
development would unlikely lead to a greater impact on the free flow of traffic in the area. 
Nor would it likely give rise to greater highway safety concerns. The narrow nature of the 
lane and the limited forward visibility for drivers would inherently result in slower traffic 
speeds and more cautious driving. Additionally, the provision of one parking space is 
deemed to be adequate for the scale of the development. It is noted that the Engineering 
and Traffic Group Leader has not raised any objection to the proposal. Therefore, the 
proposal complies with policies BW12 and TB11 of the LDP. 
 
Environment 
 
Given that the site largely comprises a hard surfaced area with gabion baskets, it is 
considered that there are no features of any significant ecological value. As such, the 
development is unlikely to have an adverse impact on any protected species or habitats. It 
is acknowledged that the existing hedgerow adjoining the southern and western boundaries 
of the site would be retained. Furthermore, there are no water courses that would be 

Page 18



affected by the development. Therefore, the proposal complies with policies BW5 and BW8 
of the LDP. 
 
Representations 
 
The concerns raised in respect of the potential highway implications of the development 
and the impact on residential amenity have been considered above. The following 
considerations are also made in response to other matters highlighted by neighbouring 
residents: 
 

 Whilst the development is considered to have a limited impact on any views from the 
neighbouring properties, the loss of any view is not a material planning 
consideration. 

 The side access serving Bramdale is narrow due to the position of the property close 
to the boundary of its curtilage. The development would not encroach or overhang 
the neighbouring property. Therefore the proposal would not impinge on the existing 
access serving Bramdale. 

 It is acknowledged that there is some contention over the ownership of the 
application site. The applicant has indicated that the site is in their ownership. 
Nevertheless, such disputes are not a material planning consideration. 

 The potential impact of the development on the value of neighbouring properties is 
not a material planning consideration. 

 Although there are concerns that the development would encourage strangers to the 
area, there is no evidence to suggest that the provision of tourist accommodation 
would give rise to greater security issues in the area. 

 No concerns have been raised by Welsh Water or the Engineering and Traffic Group 
Leader that would otherwise indicate that there is no capacity for the development to 
connect to the existing sewerage system. 

 It is accepted that there is often some disruption during construction which may have 
an impact on access or utilities. Such issues are normally temporary in nature would 
not substantiate a reason for the refusal of the application. 

 
CONCLUSIONS 
 
The duty to improve the economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being of Wales, 
in accordance with the sustainable development principle, under section 3 of the Well-Being 
of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 (“the WBFG Act”) has been taken into 
consideration when determining this application. In reaching the following recommendation, 
the ways of working set out at section 5 of the WBFG Act have been considered and thus 
the proposal is in accordance with the sustainable development principle through its 
contribution towards one or more of the Welsh Ministers well-being objectives set out as 
required by section 8 of the WBFG Act. 
 
For the reasons set out in this report the proposed development is considered to be 
acceptable and would comply with the relevant LDP policies. Accordingly, the following 
recommendation is made: 
 
 
 
 

Page 19



RECOMMENDATION: BE APPROVED subject to the following CONDITIONS: 
 
 1. The development shall begin not later than five years from the date of this decision. 
  
 Reason - To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
 
 2. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved 

plans and documents: 
  
 Drawing No. 01 - Proposed Plans and Elevations 
 Drawing No. 02 - Proposed Site Layout 
 Drawing No. 03 - Proposed Street View 
  
 Reason -To ensure compliance with the approved plans and clearly define the 

scope of the permission. 
 
 3. Prior to the construction of the building hereby approved details / samples of the 

materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the building shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. Development 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 

  
 Reason - To ensure that the external appearance of the proposed development will 

be in keeping with the character of the area and adjoining buildings in the interests of 
visual amenity and to accord with Policy BW7 of the Merthyr Tydfil Local 
Development Plan. 

 
 4. Prior to the provision of the bicycle storage units hereby approved, details of 

their exterior colour shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local 
planning authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details. 

  
 Reason - To ensure that the external appearance of the proposed development will 

be in keeping with the character of the area and adjoining buildings in the interests of 
visual amenity and to accord with Policy BW7 of the Merthyr Tydfil Local 
Development Plan. 

 
 5. No development shall commence until details of a scheme for the disposal of foul 

and surface water has been submitted to and agreed in writing by the local planning 
authority. The scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details 
prior to the beneficial use of the development and retained in perpetuity. 

  
 Reason - To ensure adequate disposal of foul and surface water drainage in 

accordance with Policy BW8 of the Merthyr Tydfil Local Development Plan. 
 
 6. No development shall take place until details, including structural calculations and 

facing materials, of any retaining wall which exceeds 1 metre in height have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The walls shall 
be completed in accordance with the approved details before the development 
hereby approved is brought into beneficial use.  

  

Page 20



 Reason - In the interest of safety and visual amenity in accordance with Policy BW7 
of the Merthyr Tydfil Local Development Plan. 

  
  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



 
            

FOR INFORMATION – APPEAL DECISION 
 
 

DATE WRITTEN 6 July 2017 

REPORT AUTHOR Judith Jones 

CASE OFFICER Mel Ferreira 

COMMITTEE Planning and Regulatory 

COMMITTEE DATE 19 July 2017 
 

 
Application No. 

 
Date 

 
Determining Authority 

P/16/0192 23.05.2016 MTCBC 
   

Proposed Development Location Name & Address of 
Applicant/Agent 

Change of use of land to a 
residential garden area for 17 
Milbourne Close and erection 
of 1.83 metre high timber 
fence 

Land To The East Of 
17 Milbourne Close 
Merthyr Tydfil 

 

Mrs D McCarthy 
17 Milbourne Close 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 0UH 

   

 

 
 
TYPE OF APPPEAL:   AGAINST REFUSAL   
APPEAL REFERENCE NO.:  APP/U6925/A/17/3169910 
DATE DECISION RECEIVED:  6 JUNE 2017 
DECISION:    DISMISSED 
 
 

ELLIS COOPER 
DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

 

Page 23

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 
            

FOR INFORMATION – APPEAL DECISION 
 

DATE WRITTEN 6 July 2017 

REPORT AUTHOR Judith Jones 

CASE OFFICER Huw Roberts 

COMMITTEE Planning and Regulatory 

COMMITTEE DATE 19 July 2017 
 

Application No. Date Determining Authority 
P/16/0264 25.08.2016 MTCBC 

 
   

Proposed Development 
 
 
Erection of dwelling and 
garage 

Location 
 
 
Former Sandbrook 
Day Centre (Plot 2) 
Queens Road 
Twynyrodyn 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 0ES 

Name & Address of 
Applicant/Agent 
 
Mr & Mrs J McAleer 
C/o Drawing and Surveying 
Services 
3 Thornbury Close 
Clwydyfagwr 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 1HP 

   

 

 

TYPE OF APPPEAL:   AGAINST REFUSAL   
APPEAL REFERENCE NO.:  APP/U6925/A/16/3165838 
DATE DECISION RECEIVED:  19 APRIL 2017 
DECISION:    DISMISSED 
 

ELLIS COOPER 
DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

 

 

Page 25

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



 
            

FOR INFORMATION – APPEAL DECISION 
 
 

DATE WRITTEN 6 July 2017 

REPORT AUTHOR Judith Jones 

CASE OFFICER Mel Ferreira 

COMMITTEE Planning and Regulatory 

COMMITTEE DATE 19 July 2017  
 

Application No. Date Determining Authority 
P/16/0283  MTCBC 
   

Proposed Development 
 
Construction of new dwelling 
with attached garage 

Location 
 
Plot 10 
Former Sandbrook 
Day Centre 
Queens Road 
Twynyrodyn 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 0ES 

Name & Address of 
Applicant/Agent 
 
Mr B Richards 
C/o K J Lloyd Architect 
49 Coed Y Pia 
Kenneth 
Llanbradach 
CF83 3PT 
 
 

   

   

 

 

TYPE OF APPPEAL:   AGAINST REFUSAL   
APPEAL REFERENCE NO.:  APP/U6925/A/16/3164271 
DATE DECISION RECEIVED:  24 MARCH 2017 
DECISION:    DISMISSED 
 

ELLIS COOPER 
DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 

Page 27

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



FOR INFORMATION 

 

DELEGATED DECISION REPORT LIST:  1 – 30 JUNE 2017 

App No Site Proposal Decision Date of 
Decision 

P/17/0011 Land To The West Of 
Old School Close And 
Corona Court 
Old School Close 
Georgetown 
Merthyr Tydfil 
 

Erection of three storey 
dwelling 

Full Approval 01/06/2017 

P/17/0097 Land Between Black 
Brook House And 
Maes-Y-Bryn 
Cardiff Road 
Treharris 
 

Erection of 5 No. detached 
dwellings with associated garages 
and access road 

Full Approval 06/06/2017 

P/17/0102 19 Maen Ganol 
Trelewis 
Treharris 
CF46 6BE 
 

Single storey extension Full Approval 16/06/2017 

P/17/0112 Tyncoedcae Farm 
Swansea Road 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 1PB 
 

Provision of access track and 
feeding pad 

Full Approval 07/06/2017 

P/17/0117 Flat A 
97 High Street 
Cefn Coed 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 2PN 

Two storey and single storey rear 
extensions 

Full Approval 06/06/2017 

P/17/0122 6 George Street 
Bedlinog 
Treharris 
CF46 6RT 
 

Demolition of existing single 
storey rear annexes and erection 
of two storey rear extension 

Full Approval 06/06/2017 

P/17/0126 76 Gurnos Road 
Gurnos 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 9RA 
 

Change of use of land to garden, 
erection of new wall with 
galvanised steel gates and 
dropped kerb 

Full Approval 16/06/2017 

  

DATE WRITTEN 5 July 2017 

REPORT AUTHOR Judith Jones 

CASE OFFICER Various 

COMMITTEE Planning and Regulatory 

COMMITTEE DATE 19 July 2017 

Page 29

Agenda Item 8



App No Site Proposal Decision Date of 
Decision 

P/17/0127 62 High Street 
Caeharris 
Dowlais 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 3PH 
 

Erection of a detached dwelling Full Approval 21/06/2017 

P/17/0128 1 Meadow Court 
Twynyrodyn 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 0UE 
 

Proposed loft conversion with 
raised ridge, rear dormer 
extension and rooflights 

Full Approval 27/06/2017 

P/17/0129 24 Andrews Close 
Heolgerrig 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 1SS 
 

Demolish garage and construct 
side extensions, dormers and 
porch extension 

Full Approval 02/06/2017 

P/17/0130 Merthyr Tydfil College  
College Boulevard 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 1AR 
 

Construction of a new 
shelter/canopy to allow outside 
working 

Full Approval 12/06/2017 

P/17/0131 Shanida 
Swansea Road 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 1HR 
 

Demolish existing bungalow and 
construct a new two storey 
dwelling 

Refusal 28/06/2017 

P/17/0132 14 - 15 Pantyscallog 
Pant Road 
Pant 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 2BY 
 

Change of use of former post 
office to residential apartment 
and external works including 
removal of shopfront, insertion of 
new windows and door, new 
front boundary wall, railings and 
gates and removal of corrugated 
roof to rear 
 

Full Approval 27/06/2017 

P/17/0135 Parks Office 
Cyfarthfa Park 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 8RE 
 

Change of use from office to 
beauty salon (Sui Generis use) 

Full Approval 14/06/2017 

P/17/0137 Old Co-op Building 
Pantyscallog 
Pant Road 
Pant 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 2BY 
 

Installation of ATM Full Approval 28/06/2017 

  

Page 30



App No Site Proposal Decision Date of 
Decision 

P/17/0138 Old Co-op Building 
Pantyscallog 
Pant Road 
Pant 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 2BY 
 

ATM signage Advertisement 
Approval 

28/06/2017 

P/17/0140 St Aloysius RC Primary 
School  
Cedar Way 
Gurnos 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 9PA 
 

Erection of a flag pole Advertisement 
Approval 

09/06/2017 

P/17/0146 Castell Corke 
Penlan View 
Ynysfach 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 8NJ 
 

Conversion of garage to habitable 
room 

Full Approval 19/06/2017 

P/17/0147 Land Formerly Part Of 
Meadowsweet Farm 
High Street 
Trelewis 
Treharris 
 

Proposed erection of a barn Refusal 13/06/2017 

P/17/0150 Unit C3  
(former P C World) 
Triangle Business Park 
Pentrebach 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 4TQ 
 

Change of use of Unit C3 from 
retail (Use Class A1) to a flexible 
use for an indoor trampoline park 
(Use Class D2 ) and its reversion 
to an A1 retail use 

Full Approval 19/06/2017 

P/17/0153 12 Fox Street 
Treharris 
CF46 5HE 
 

Installation of replacement fascia 
sign and projecting hanging sign 

Advertisement 
Approval 

27/06/2017 

P/17/0156 5 Pen Cerrig Rise 
Brecon View Park 
Heolgerrig 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 1BF 
 

Erection of rear extension Full Approval 26/06/2017 

P/17/0158 Land To The Rear Of 
Maple Crescent 
Trefechan 
Merthyr Tydfil 
 
 

Demolition of existing garages 
and erection of new garages 

Full Approval 28/06/2017 

Page 31



App No Site Proposal Decision Date of 
Decision 

P/17/0161 11 Vaynor Villas 
Upper Vaynor Road 
Cefn Coed 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 2NR 
 

Single storey rear extension Certificate of Law 
Granted 

02/06/2017 

     

 

 

Page 32


	Agenda
	3 P/16/0205  -  Plot of land adjacent to 6 Brynseion Street, Troedyrhiw, Merthyr Tydfil
	4 P/17/0149  -  Land adjoining Bramdale, Ash Road, Troedyrhiw, Merthyr Tydfil
	5 P/16/0192  -  Appeal Decision
	6 P/16/0264  -  Appeal Decision
	7 P/16/0283  -  Appeal Decision
	8 Delegated Report

